Regular Meeting of the Board of Education Wayne-Westland Community Schools Monday, May 22, 2023 7:00 p.m. 36745 Marquette, Westland MI 48185

#### Minutes

## 254.23 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG – Cox

Jackson Duncan Barnes, Ruby Barnes and Scarlet Barnes Walker-Winter Elementary School, Julie Mytych, Principal

255.23 ROLL CALL/ATTENDANCE – Hines

Board members present: John F. Albrecht, David R. Cox, Melandie Hines, Kimberly R. May, Mark F. Neal, Frederick L. Weaver, Th.D.

Board members absent: LeWanna Abney-Mitchell

### 256.23 RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS – Dignan

I. Unified and Esports – Schulte

Dr. Dignan introduced Michael Schulte, K-12 Activities Coordinator.

Mr. Schulte introduced Brian McTaggart and Serg Abate, Stevenson Middle School Esports Coaches.

Esports is a club where video games are played competitively. The participants have an opportunity to compete with 13 other middle schools across the state. Esports participants 13 and up were able to compete in a national league. The students learned how to maintain player accounts, build communication skills, and set up and break down equipment. Esports also teaches the students lifelong problem-solving and social-emotional skills. The coaches were overwhelmingly proud of the students as competitors and citizens of Stevenson Middle School. The coaches also gave a special thanks to their supporters, donors and Stevenson staff for the opportunity to participate in Esports.

Mr. Schulte shared that the high school participated in playing the game Overwatch, practicing from October through April. The practices allowed players to build teamwork and communication skills. They developed three teams Alpha, Beta, and Charlie. All players must maintain their academic and behavioral standards to remain eligible to play. The teams ranked highly in the beginning of the national tournament against all participants in the country. Team Alpha finished 41<sup>st</sup> and team Bravo 55<sup>th</sup> in the nation. Mr. Schulte thanked the participants, coaches and all supporters. Mr. Schulte introduced the coaches of Unified Sports, Larry Lyman and Ra-Mon Watkins, and was thankful for all the support that was received to bring Unified Sports back. This year basketball and bocce ball were offered to John Glenn High School, Wayne Memorial High School, Stevenson Middle School and Adams Middle School. Basketball season concluded with a tournament including all of the teams in the league. Bocce ball was a little more laid back than basketball and will conclude at the end-of-the-year tournament tomorrow. A core group of students were usually in attendance and others came when they were able. The first Unified Sports season was a success and would not have been possible without the support of sponsors, staff and the citizens.

II. Blessings in a Backpack – Dybus

Dr. Dignan introduced Amanda Dybus, Supervisor of Family and Community Engagement and shared that just \$110.00 feeds a food-insecure child for one year.

Amanda Dybus explained that Blessings in a Backpack were packaged by post-secondary students for the students at Hicks Elementary School. After the food was packaged the post-secondary students rode the bus to Hicks Elementary School and discreetly delivered the packages to the foodinsecure students. She thanked the students and staff that participated in Blessings in a Backpack.

Dr. Dignan expressed that without the post-secondary students' hard work, the program would not have been possible.

III. Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy Student Representatives – Alyssa Mary-Jane Atkinson

Dignan introduced Kente Rosser, Principal; Steven Barber, Assistant Principal; and Kelly Villa Assistant Principal of Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy.

Mr. Rosser shared that Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy offers multiple tracks for student success, face-to-face - small class sizes, virtual -100% online, and project-based learning - hybrid. He then introduced Alyssa Mary-Jane Atkinson.

Alyssa Mary-Jane Atkinson is a proud member of the Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy community and a 2023 graduate. She shared that she received incredible guidance, and the staff helped her to excel in ways that she never could have imagined. Ms. Havekate, Ms. Hanschu and Ms. Amanda taught her to be the best she can be, think critically and outside the box, and be creative. She did not think that graduation was possible. However, she was able to graduate two weeks before delivering her baby.

Mr. Rosser thanked the administration and the school board for the opportunity to offer a variety of programs to help students succeed. He is very proud and excited about the promise that the future holds for Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy.

IV. Upward Bound – Jonna-Moore

Dr. Digan introduced Yvette Jonna-Moore, Director of Upward Bound, Wayne Memorial High School.

Yvette Jonna-Moore shared that Upward Bound is a college preparation program for low-income and first-generation students funded by a federal grant. This grant is extremely completive and is awarded every 5 years. Wayne-Westland has been continuously receiving this grant for 41 years. Participants are expected to complete monthly community service, maintain a 3.0 gpa or above, have strong attendance, and participate in experimental learning. Experimental learning field trips include museums, concerts, theater, academic enrichment and college tours. By the time Upward Bound students graduate they will have had the opportunity to tour every public college in the State of Michigan. All participants also commit to a 6-week summer program including math, science, coding, and ELA. Students are also encouraged to apply to outside summer programs. Senior students are required to apply to 10 scholarships and 8 colleges. The students in the program have received over 10 million dollars in scholarships.

Alan Hernandez, senior at Wayne Memorial High School has been an Upward Bound student for all 4 years at Wayne Memorial High School. He will be attending the University of Chicago in the fall on a full ride provided by the QuestBridge Foundation and the Gates Scholarship. He did not feel that this accomplishment would be possible without Upward Bound. Upward Bound pushes the participants to take advantage of opportunities and helps them succeed. He thanked Upward Bound and the district for making this possible.

V. Wayne Memorial High Schools Detroit Institute of Art – Thomas, Hermann, and Hanna

Dr. Dignan mentioned that Wayne-Westland Community Schools will be entering into a partnership with the Detroit Institute of Art (DIA) in the near future. He introduced Amber Thomas, Lisa Hermann, and Erika Hanna, teachers from Wayne Memorial High School. Ms. Hermann thanked everyone for the opportunity to highlight the students that were selected to have their art displayed at the DIA. Malaya Jackson, a sophomore; Brooklyn Trudeau, a freshman; and Joy McCullum, a senior at Wayne Memorial High School, were able to express themselves in a way to be recognized by the Detroit Institute of Art.

### VI. SEL – Beebe and Dybus

Dr. Dignan introduced Daryl Beebe, Executive Director of College and Career Readiness and Social Emotional Learning and Amanda Dybus Supervisor of Family and Community Engagement to share the progress on Social Emotional Learning.

Mr. Beebe explained that the focus of Social Emotional Learning (SEL) is to help assess and address the non-academic needs of the district. The district is focusing on the five core competencies of self-awareness, selfmanagement, social awareness, relationship skills and responsible decision making. To strengthen the districts SEL program, the Trails to Wellness program was adopted. Trails to Wellness program will help the district focus on SEL education and awareness, early intervention for students experiencing mental health difficulties and suicide awareness and prevention. The district is also focusing on restorative practices. Restorative practices demonstrate a positive school climate and culture while reducing discipline and improving attendance.

Ms. Dybus shared that the mental health task force helps to spread awareness for suicide prevention, Be a Buddy Not a Bully, children's grief, and mental health.

Suicide prevention week was September 19-23. Suicide awareness was acknowledged by a poster contest, discussing myths and facts, how to access help, self-care discussion in classes and wearing yellow in support of suicide prevention awareness.

Wayne-Westland Community Schools is a member of the Wayne County Suicide Prevention Coalition. The coalition is made up of seven school districts: Wayne-Westland Community Schools, Livonia Public Schools, Plymouth-Canton Community Schools, Northville Public Schools, South Redford School District, Garden City Public Schools and Redford Union Schools. Together the districts work along with hospitals and service agencies to address suicide prevention, support mental health and aim for zero suicides within the 7 western Wayne school districts. The coalition is working on identifying a screener for suicide and a data tool to collect much needed data on suicide. The Coalition offers professional development which focuses on suicide prevention. Wayne-Westland Community Schools was one of the first districts to adopt the Question, Persuade, Refer (QPR) model. QPR is a tool that trains participants on what to listen for, what to do and how to access help. Wayne-Westland Community Schools has over 1,040 staff members trained and the next step will be to get students trained.

Be a Buddy, Not a Bully week was October 24-28, for all elementary schools. This was a spirit week on how to be a buddy and the Compassion Project was launched.

The Compassion Project is a program where students are selected to be recognized for random acts of kindness. The students selected are acknowledged every month at the Westland City Council meeting.

Care Solace is a complimentary and confidential service provided by our district for mental health and substance abuse services. This service will help to connect individuals with the help needed. Care Solace will call providers for them and find services that match their needs and preferences. The service can be accessed by administrators, social workers, staff members or by the families themselves. Wayne-Westland Community Schools was the first school district in the State of Michigan to participate with the Care Solace service.

Brian Peters, Regional Director of K-12 Partnerships Midwest for Care Solace, shared that they wanted to help to provide access for every student, staff and family member to obtain services when needed. The district wanted everyone to have the opportunity to see a provider in a timely manner and get the help that they need.

Wayne-Westland Community Schools can initiate a warm handoff to Care Solace when they have a student, family, or staff member in need of services. In the 2022-2023 school year, there were 544 warm handoffs to Care Solace. Once the warm handoff was received, within 15 minutes Care Solace was reaching out to the families. The national average to see a provider is 16 weeks and Care Solace has been able to help Wayne-Westland families access help with an average of 3 weeks. Wayne-Westland families have a 50% success rate of getting connected with a provider. There were 308 anonymous searches, these searches were conducted without the help of a Wayne-Westland employee. Care Solace has saved Wayne-Westland staff and families 787 hours by bridging the gap of the connection with a provider. Wayne-Westland has done an incredible job of accessing support.

Mr. Beebe shared that as part of Social Emotional Learning, the district shared in the joy and appreciation for reading. The Celebrity Readers

program was continued this year and was a great success. Each elementary school library now offers mental health books.

Ms. Dybus discussed the partnership between Wayne-Westland Community Schools and Big Green Detroit. Big Green Detroit provides raised garden beds, seeds, soil and academic and educational resources. Social Emotional Learning is so much more than a curriculum. This program teaches students to work as a team.

As a reminder, our district has three Family Resource Centers in the district. The Family Resource Center can help families seek resources or services, offer laundry assistance and needed school or hygiene materials.

257.23 CITIZEN'S COMMENTS: AGENDA ITEMS - Cox

There were no public comments.

# 258.23 CONSENT AGENDA

- I. MINUTES
  - a. Regular Meeting Minutes April 24, 2023
- II. HUMAN RESOURCE ITEMS
  - a. Resignations: Instructional, Non-Instructional Personnel

Nellie Maltby David Perrotta Heather Martinez-Varieur

- b. Placements: Instructional, Non-Instructional, Non-Affiliated Personnel
  - Christina McAtee Angel Epps Misty Fogg D'Andra Kaminski-Foulks Geraldine McBride-Edward Chad Reed Janice Andretich Maya Bobrovnikov Aaliyah Braddy Anita Fahey Heather Hawkes Maddison Jenkinson Jordan Khalaf Lisa Morton

Jayuan Peete Jawuan Peete Marlene Selvia Jeremy Singleton Madysen Steele Jonathan Turner Dawn Wade

- c. Assistant Superintendent's Contract Amendments (4) (under separate cover)
- III. BUSINESS & FINANCE ITEMS
  - a. Payment of Invoices (under separate cover)
  - b. Investment Report (under separate cover)
- IV. CITY OF WESTLAND NEIGHBORHOOD STABILIZATION PROGRAM
- V. SENIOR SUPPORT PROPOSAL (under separate cover)
- VI. HEAD START MONTHLY REPORT (under separate cover)
- VII. DONATIONS

The following donation was made to the John Glenn High School Athletic Department for the baseball program:

a. Derek Cochran: Monetary donation

The following donation was made to Wayne-Westland Community Schools to support student volunteers for professional development day:

a. Wayne Ford Civic League – Vic Barra: Monetary donation

The following donation was made to Wayne-Westland Community Schools to support breakfast for Discover Your Path industry participants:

a. Wayne Ford Civic League - Vic Barra: Monetary donation

The following donations were made to John Glenn High School's Robotics Team:

- a. Deloitte Smart Factory Monetary donation
- b. Community Financial Credit Union Monetary donation
- c. National Realty Center Monetary donation

Resolved, that the board approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion by F. Weaver, support by M. Neal.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:6NAYS:0ABSTAIN:0ABSENT:1

MOTION PASSED

# 259.23 BOARD OF EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT – Cox

I. Finance Committee Report – May

Ms. May shared the following comments from a prepared statement:

The Finance Committee Meeting of the Board of Trustees of Wayne-Westland Community Schools was held May 4, 2023, beginning at 4:31 pm via Zoom platform.

Mr. Wenzel presented technology purchases that will be charged to Title I and the General Fund.

Mr. Spisak and Mr. Underwood shared details of the bid opening.

Mr. Spisak and Mr. VanderZee provided an update regarding the security program investment as well as information regarding protecting our security system upgrades.

Mrs. Cleaves presented the investment report and check register.

Mrs. Cleaves also shared comments on behalf of Dr. Dignan.

Each board member thanked the staff for their presentations.

# 260.23 REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF BUSINESS SERVICE & FINANCE - Ofili

I. Recommendation to Purchase Title I Technology

Resolved, that the board approve Business Service & Finance Item I. as presented. Motion by J. Albrecht support by F. Weaver.

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

# MOTION PASSED

II. Recommendation to Purchase Title I Headsets & Headphones – Elementary and Middle School

Resolved, that the board approve Business Service & Finance Item II. as presented. Motion by J. Albrecht, support by K. May.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

# MOTION PASSED

III. Recommendation to Approve Bid Pack #10 – Adams, Stottlemyer and Kennedy Center

Resolved, that the board approve Business Service & Finance Item III. as presented. Motion by M. Neal, support by F. Weaver.

# ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

## MOTION PASSED

IV. Recommendation to Extend Technology Service Contracts

Resolved, that the board approve Business Service & Finance Item IV. as presented. Motion by K. May, support by M. Neal.

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

### 261.23 STUDENT REINSTATEMENT (under separate cover) – Tocco

Resolved, that the board reinstate Student 2223-C according to the terms and conditions of the Resolution. Motion by J. Albrecht, support by F. Weaver.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

262.23 REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF WAYNE COUNTY REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY (WAYNE RESA) BUDGET RESOLUTION – Cox

Resolved, that the board approve the Wayne RESA 2023-2024 budget and waive the need to read the enclosed resolution. Motion by M. Hines, support by K. May.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

263.23 REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF WAYNE COUNTY REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY (WAYNE RESA) ELECTION REPRESENTATIVE RESOLUTION – Cox

Resolved, that the board approve the Wayne RESA Election Representative resolution. Motion by J. Albrecht, support by F. Weaver.

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

264.23 SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT/COMMENTS - Dignan

Dr. Dignan shared the following comments from a prepared statement:

**Discover Your Path** was held at Hype in Wayne. All of our 8th graders and WWIA students will participate in hands-on activities from over 40 industry partners!

**LIUNA Event:** As a district, we have been making a real push into the "Trades". This is a viable option and we want to educate students and families around all opportunities. We have 8 of Wayne-Westland Community Schools first youth apprentices...And the FIRST in Wayne County! Our students will do summer internships starting this year.

John Glenn teacher hits a high note: Ms. Andrea Bonner, a John Glenn High School music education teacher, was recognized as an Exceptional Educator through a program created by the Giroux Pappas Trial Attorneys Law Firm. Ms. Bonner was nominated for her commitment to music education. She leads music appreciation, choir, band, symphonic, and orchestra classes and is the marching band director. John Glenn High School received a \$1,000 donation from the law firm.

**Work-Based Learning:** We had 173 students out on Work-Based Learning that required a visit by an instructor and a training agreement. Some of these were paid jobs and some were unpaid internships or clinical, but they were out receiving hands-on training in all. A special "thank you" to Gay Bobowski, CTC Work-Based Learning Coordinator. She has done an incredible job this year.

**Fifth graders explore career paths at Eastern Michigan University:** For two weeks, 800 district fifth graders took over the Eastern Michigan University campus for the Wayne-Westland Excursion camp. Students explored two career paths of their choice and on the final day, campers celebrated their experience by showcasing projects related to their field of study, including dance routines, dramatic scenes, and creative art projects. This camp is part of the district's college and career readiness initiatives.

**Register now for summer programs!** Wayne-Westland Community Schools has partnered with several community organizations to provide a variety of exciting programs to keep your child engaged this summer. Information and registration links can be found in the 2023 Summer Programs Information Guide on the District Website. Program placement is on a first-come, first-serve basis.

The Oxford Fire Department donated a fire truck to William D. Ford Career-Technical Center. We are so thankful to our friends Chief Matthew Majestic and Assistant Chief Randy Vesper. This fire truck will train the next generation of great firefighters.

This week we have Young Sharks and the Community of Champions Breakfast.

The countdown is on! This week is the last week of school for the Class of 2023. Our seniors and their families will celebrate prom, award ceremonies and graduation. We are very proud of our students and wish them the best of luck.

**Graduation Celebration:** Please join us for our district's three graduation ceremonies. On June 2nd at 6:00 pm at the Hype Recreation Center, located at 4635 Howe Rd, Wayne, MI 48184, we will celebrate our students from Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy. Then, the next day we will honor John Glenn High School at 10:00 am and Wayne-Memorial High School at 2:00 pm. Both ceremonies will be held at the Eastern Michigan University George Gervin GameAbove Center, located at 799 N. Hewitt, Ypsilanti, Mi. 48197.

**Save the Date - Back to School and Resource Fair 8.16.23:** Wayne-Westland Community Schools is hosting its Back to School and Resource Fair on Wednesday, August 16, 2023, from 3 to 7 p.m. at the John Glenn High School football field. The fair will feature family resources, including health screenings and book bags with supplies. In addition, attendees can enjoy food, carnival games, train rides, a petting zoo and more. All for FREE. Be sure to mark your calendar and join us for the fun. All students must be accompanied by a parent or legal guardian.

265.23 CITIZEN'S COMMENTS: NON-AGENDA ITEMS (GENERAL) - Cox

The following citizens commented that they believe Ms. Swanson should remain the principal at Wildwood Elementary School:

Melinda Harris Alex Itter Hadligh Yoh Jackson Cunningham Jaxson Cunningham Natalie Whaley Kevin Carter Thomas Truchan Abigail Krappitz Julie King Theron Allen Maja Cunningham Ellie Truchan Serenity (Last name unknown) Morgan (Last name unknown)

Dr. Fleda Fleming, from the Equipped Organization shared that their organization will be honoring two students from Johns Glenn High School and Two students from Wayne Memorial High School each with a \$1000 Scholarship.

# 266.23 REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATIONS, BOARD OF EDUCATION - Cox

K. May:

- Thanked all of the presenters, pledge students and citizens.
- Thanked all students, staff and families for all of their hard work in the outstanding school year.

M. Hines:

- Thanked the pledge students and citizens.
- Shared that she had an opportunity to attend:
  - o The skilled trades career fair and it was an awesome experience
  - o School improvement dinner
  - William D. Ford's extrication performed by the Fire and EMT program and the home build by Construction Trades program
  - o High school plays
  - o The Holocaust Museum

# F. Weaver:

- Thanked Amada Dybus and Daryl Beebe for their presentation.
- M. Neal:
  - Acknowledged that are not as many people as there use to be signing up to serve the community. It is great that we offer the programs to educate the students about civil service opportunities.
- J. Albrecht:
  - Thanked the pledge students and all speakers.
  - He was appreciative that the students and families shared their feelings.
- D. Cox:
  - Thanked the parents of the students for bringing them to address the board.

- Shared that every student and employee has a path.
- Family Resource Center is a great resource, but families cannot use the resources if they do not know how to obtain them.
- The Wayne-Westland Relay for Life will be held June 10, from 11am Midnight located at Tattan Park in Westland.
- Thanked Dr. Dignan for making the decisions that the district needs.

### 267.23 ADJOURNMENT

Resolved, that the board adjourn the meeting at 9:19 p.m. Motion by M. Hines, support by K. May.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

Melandie Hines Board of Education Secretary Wayne-Westland Community Schools

Regular Meeting of the Board of Education Wayne-Westland Community Schools Monday, May 22, 2023 7:00 p.m. 36745 Marquette, Westland MI 48185

#### Minutes

### 254.23 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG – Cox

Jackson Duncan Barnes, Ruby Barnes and Scarlet Barnes Walker-Winter Elementary School, Julie Mytych, Principal

255.23 ROLL CALL/ATTENDANCE – Hines

Board members present: John F. Albrecht, David R. Cox, Melandie Hines, Kimberly R. May, Mark F. Neal, Frederick L. Weaver, Th.D.

Board members absent: LeWanna Abney-Mitchell

#### 256.23 RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS – Dignan

I. Unified and Esports – Schulte

Dr. Dignan introduced Michael Schulte, K-12 Activities Coordinator.

Mr. Schulte introduced Brian McTaggart and Serg Abate, Stevenson Middle School Esports Coaches.

Esports is a club where video games are played competitively. The participants have an opportunity to compete with 13 other middle schools across the state. Esports participants 13 and up were able to compete in a national league. The students learned how to maintain player accounts, build communication skills, and set up and break down equipment. Esports also teaches the students lifelong problem-solving and social-emotional skills. The coaches were overwhelmingly proud of the students as competitors and citizens of Stevenson Middle School. The coaches also gave a special thanks to their supporters, donors and Stevenson staff for the opportunity to participate in Esports.

Mr. Schulte shared that the high school participated in playing the game Overwatch, practicing from October through April. The practices allowed players to build teamwork and communication skills. They developed three teams Alpha, Beta, and Charlie. All players must maintain their academic and behavioral standards to remain eligible to play. The teams ranked highly in the beginning of the national tournament against all participants in the country. Team Alpha finished 41<sup>st</sup> and team Bravo 55<sup>th</sup> in the nation. Mr. Schulte thanked the participants, coaches and all supporters. Mr. Schulte introduced the coaches of Unified Sports, Larry Lyman and Ra-Mon Watkins, and was thankful for all the support that was received to bring Unified Sports back. This year basketball and bocce ball were offered to John Glenn High School, Wayne Memorial High School, Stevenson Middle School and Adams Middle School. Basketball season concluded with a tournament including all of the teams in the league. Bocce ball was a little more laid back than basketball and will conclude at the end-of-the-year tournament tomorrow. A core group of students were usually in attendance and others came when they were able. The first Unified Sports season was a success and would not have been possible without the support of sponsors, staff and the citizens.

II. Blessings in a Backpack – Dybus

Dr. Dignan introduced Amanda Dybus, Supervisor of Family and Community Engagement and shared that just \$110.00 feeds a food-insecure child for one year.

Amanda Dybus explained that Blessings in a Backpack were packaged by post-secondary students for the students at Hicks Elementary School. After the food was packaged the post-secondary students rode the bus to Hicks Elementary School and discreetly delivered the packages to the foodinsecure students. She thanked the students and staff that participated in Blessings in a Backpack.

Dr. Dignan expressed that without the post-secondary students' hard work, the program would not have been possible.

III. Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy Student Representatives – Alyssa Mary-Jane Atkinson

Dignan introduced Kente Rosser, Principal; Steven Barber, Assistant Principal; and Kelly Villa Assistant Principal of Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy.

Mr. Rosser shared that Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy offers multiple tracks for student success, face-to-face - small class sizes, virtual -100% online, and project-based learning - hybrid. He then introduced Alyssa Mary-Jane Atkinson.

Alyssa Mary-Jane Atkinson is a proud member of the Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy community and a 2023 graduate. She shared that she received incredible guidance, and the staff helped her to excel in ways that she never could have imagined. Ms. Havekate, Ms. Hanschu and Ms. Amanda taught her to be the best she can be, think critically and outside the box, and be creative. She did not think that graduation was possible. However, she was able to graduate two weeks before delivering her baby.

Mr. Rosser thanked the administration and the school board for the opportunity to offer a variety of programs to help students succeed. He is very proud and excited about the promise that the future holds for Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy.

IV. Upward Bound – Jonna-Moore

Dr. Digan introduced Yvette Jonna-Moore, Director of Upward Bound, Wayne Memorial High School.

Yvette Jonna-Moore shared that Upward Bound is a college preparation program for low-income and first-generation students funded by a federal grant. This grant is extremely completive and is awarded every 5 years. Wayne-Westland has been continuously receiving this grant for 41 years. Participants are expected to complete monthly community service, maintain a 3.0 gpa or above, have strong attendance, and participate in experimental learning. Experimental learning field trips include museums, concerts, theater, academic enrichment and college tours. By the time Upward Bound students graduate they will have had the opportunity to tour every public college in the State of Michigan. All participants also commit to a 6-week summer program including math, science, coding, and ELA. Students are also encouraged to apply to outside summer programs. Senior students are required to apply to 10 scholarships and 8 colleges. The students in the program have received over 10 million dollars in scholarships.

Alan Hernandez, senior at Wayne Memorial High School has been an Upward Bound student for all 4 years at Wayne Memorial High School. He will be attending the University of Chicago in the fall on a full ride provided by the QuestBridge Foundation and the Gates Scholarship. He did not feel that this accomplishment would be possible without Upward Bound. Upward Bound pushes the participants to take advantage of opportunities and helps them succeed. He thanked Upward Bound and the district for making this possible.

V. Wayne Memorial High Schools Detroit Institute of Art – Thomas, Hermann, and Hanna

Dr. Dignan mentioned that Wayne-Westland Community Schools will be entering into a partnership with the Detroit Institute of Art (DIA) in the near future. He introduced Amber Thomas, Lisa Hermann, and Erika Hanna, teachers from Wayne Memorial High School. Ms. Hermann thanked everyone for the opportunity to highlight the students that were selected to have their art displayed at the DIA. Malaya Jackson, a sophomore; Brooklyn Trudeau, a freshman; and Joy McCullum, a senior at Wayne Memorial High School, were able to express themselves in a way to be recognized by the Detroit Institute of Art.

### VI. SEL – Beebe and Dybus

Dr. Dignan introduced Daryl Beebe, Executive Director of College and Career Readiness and Social Emotional Learning and Amanda Dybus Supervisor of Family and Community Engagement to share the progress on Social Emotional Learning.

Mr. Beebe explained that the focus of Social Emotional Learning (SEL) is to help assess and address the non-academic needs of the district. The district is focusing on the five core competencies of self-awareness, selfmanagement, social awareness, relationship skills and responsible decision making. To strengthen the districts SEL program, the Trails to Wellness program was adopted. Trails to Wellness program will help the district focus on SEL education and awareness, early intervention for students experiencing mental health difficulties and suicide awareness and prevention. The district is also focusing on restorative practices. Restorative practices demonstrate a positive school climate and culture while reducing discipline and improving attendance.

Ms. Dybus shared that the mental health task force helps to spread awareness for suicide prevention, Be a Buddy Not a Bully, children's grief, and mental health.

Suicide prevention week was September 19-23. Suicide awareness was acknowledged by a poster contest, discussing myths and facts, how to access help, self-care discussion in classes and wearing yellow in support of suicide prevention awareness.

Wayne-Westland Community Schools is a member of the Wayne County Suicide Prevention Coalition. The coalition is made up of seven school districts: Wayne-Westland Community Schools, Livonia Public Schools, Plymouth-Canton Community Schools, Northville Public Schools, South Redford School District, Garden City Public Schools and Redford Union Schools. Together the districts work along with hospitals and service agencies to address suicide prevention, support mental health and aim for zero suicides within the 7 western Wayne school districts. The coalition is working on identifying a screener for suicide and a data tool to collect much needed data on suicide. The Coalition offers professional development which focuses on suicide prevention. Wayne-Westland Community Schools was one of the first districts to adopt the Question, Persuade, Refer (QPR) model. QPR is a tool that trains participants on what to listen for, what to do and how to access help. Wayne-Westland Community Schools has over 1,040 staff members trained and the next step will be to get students trained.

Be a Buddy, Not a Bully week was October 24-28, for all elementary schools. This was a spirit week on how to be a buddy and the Compassion Project was launched.

The Compassion Project is a program where students are selected to be recognized for random acts of kindness. The students selected are acknowledged every month at the Westland City Council meeting.

Care Solace is a complimentary and confidential service provided by our district for mental health and substance abuse services. This service will help to connect individuals with the help needed. Care Solace will call providers for them and find services that match their needs and preferences. The service can be accessed by administrators, social workers, staff members or by the families themselves. Wayne-Westland Community Schools was the first school district in the State of Michigan to participate with the Care Solace service.

Brian Peters, Regional Director of K-12 Partnerships Midwest for Care Solace, shared that they wanted to help to provide access for every student, staff and family member to obtain services when needed. The district wanted everyone to have the opportunity to see a provider in a timely manner and get the help that they need.

Wayne-Westland Community Schools can initiate a warm handoff to Care Solace when they have a student, family, or staff member in need of services. In the 2022-2023 school year, there were 544 warm handoffs to Care Solace. Once the warm handoff was received, within 15 minutes Care Solace was reaching out to the families. The national average to see a provider is 16 weeks and Care Solace has been able to help Wayne-Westland families access help with an average of 3 weeks. Wayne-Westland families have a 50% success rate of getting connected with a provider. There were 308 anonymous searches, these searches were conducted without the help of a Wayne-Westland employee. Care Solace has saved Wayne-Westland staff and families 787 hours by bridging the gap of the connection with a provider. Wayne-Westland has done an incredible job of accessing support.

Mr. Beebe shared that as part of Social Emotional Learning, the district shared in the joy and appreciation for reading. The Celebrity Readers

program was continued this year and was a great success. Each elementary school library now offers mental health books.

Ms. Dybus discussed the partnership between Wayne-Westland Community Schools and Big Green Detroit. Big Green Detroit provides raised garden beds, seeds, soil and academic and educational resources. Social Emotional Learning is so much more than a curriculum. This program teaches students to work as a team.

As a reminder, our district has three Family Resource Centers in the district. The Family Resource Center can help families seek resources or services, offer laundry assistance and needed school or hygiene materials.

257.23 CITIZEN'S COMMENTS: AGENDA ITEMS - Cox

There were no public comments.

# 258.23 CONSENT AGENDA

- I. MINUTES
  - a. Regular Meeting Minutes April 24, 2023
- II. HUMAN RESOURCE ITEMS
  - a. Resignations: Instructional, Non-Instructional Personnel

Nellie Maltby David Perrotta Heather Martinez-Varieur

- b. Placements: Instructional, Non-Instructional, Non-Affiliated Personnel
  - Christina McAtee Angel Epps Misty Fogg D'Andra Kaminski-Foulks Geraldine McBride-Edward Chad Reed Janice Andretich Maya Bobrovnikov Aaliyah Braddy Anita Fahey Heather Hawkes Maddison Jenkinson Jordan Khalaf Lisa Morton

Jayuan Peete Jawuan Peete Marlene Selvia Jeremy Singleton Madysen Steele Jonathan Turner Dawn Wade

- c. Assistant Superintendent's Contract Amendments (4) (under separate cover)
- III. BUSINESS & FINANCE ITEMS
  - a. Payment of Invoices (under separate cover)
  - b. Investment Report (under separate cover)
- IV. CITY OF WESTLAND NEIGHBORHOOD STABILIZATION PROGRAM
- V. SENIOR SUPPORT PROPOSAL (under separate cover)
- VI. HEAD START MONTHLY REPORT (under separate cover)
- VII. DONATIONS

The following donation was made to the John Glenn High School Athletic Department for the baseball program:

a. Derek Cochran: Monetary donation

The following donation was made to Wayne-Westland Community Schools to support student volunteers for professional development day:

a. Wayne Ford Civic League – Vic Barra: Monetary donation

The following donation was made to Wayne-Westland Community Schools to support breakfast for Discover Your Path industry participants:

a. Wayne Ford Civic League – Vic Barra: Monetary donation

The following donations were made to John Glenn High School's Robotics Team:

- a. Deloitte Smart Factory Monetary donation
- b. Community Financial Credit Union Monetary donation
- c. National Realty Center Monetary donation

Resolved, that the board approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion by F. Weaver, support by M. Neal.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:6NAYS:0ABSTAIN:0ABSENT:1

MOTION PASSED

# 259.23 BOARD OF EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT – Cox

I. Finance Committee Report – May

Ms. May shared the following comments from a prepared statement:

The Finance Committee Meeting of the Board of Trustees of Wayne-Westland Community Schools was held May 4, 2023, beginning at 4:31 pm via Zoom platform.

Mr. Wenzel presented technology purchases that will be charged to Title I and the General Fund.

Mr. Spisak and Mr. Underwood shared details of the bid opening.

Mr. Spisak and Mr. VanderZee provided an update regarding the security program investment as well as information regarding protecting our security system upgrades.

Mrs. Cleaves presented the investment report and check register.

Mrs. Cleaves also shared comments on behalf of Dr. Dignan.

Each board member thanked the staff for their presentations.

# 260.23 REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF BUSINESS SERVICE & FINANCE – Ofili

I. Recommendation to Purchase Title I Technology

Resolved, that the board approve Business Service & Finance Item I. as presented. Motion by J. Albrecht support by F. Weaver.

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

II. Recommendation to Purchase Title I Headsets & Headphones – Elementary and Middle School

Resolved, that the board approve Business Service & Finance Item II. as presented. Motion by J. Albrecht, support by K. May.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

III. Recommendation to Approve Bid Pack #10 – Adams, Stottlemyer and Kennedy Center

Resolved, that the board approve Business Service & Finance Item III. as presented. Motion by M. Neal, support by F. Weaver.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

IV. Recommendation to Extend Technology Service Contracts

Resolved, that the board approve Business Service & Finance Item IV. as presented. Motion by K. May, support by M. Neal.

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

### 261.23 STUDENT REINSTATEMENT (under separate cover) – Tocco

Resolved, that the board reinstate Student 2223-C according to the terms and conditions of the Resolution. Motion by J. Albrecht, support by F. Weaver.

ROLL CALL VOTE

6
0
0
1

MOTION PASSED

262.23 REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF WAYNE COUNTY REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY (WAYNE RESA) BUDGET RESOLUTION – Cox

Resolved, that the board approve the Wayne RESA 2023-2024 budget and waive the need to read the enclosed resolution. Motion by M. Hines, support by K. May.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

263.23 REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF WAYNE COUNTY REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE AGENCY (WAYNE RESA) ELECTION REPRESENTATIVE RESOLUTION – Cox

Resolved, that the board approve the Wayne RESA Election Representative resolution. Motion by J. Albrecht, support by F. Weaver.

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

## 264.23 SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT/COMMENTS – Dignan

Dr. Dignan shared the following comments from a prepared statement:

**Discover Your Path** was held at Hype in Wayne. All of our 8th graders and WWIA students will participate in hands-on activities from over 40 industry partners!

**LIUNA Event:** As a district, we have been making a real push into the "Trades". This is a viable option and we want to educate students and families around all opportunities. We have 8 of Wayne-Westland Community Schools first youth apprentices...And the FIRST in Wayne County! Our students will do summer internships starting this year.

**John Glenn teacher hits a high note:** Ms. Andrea Bonner, a John Glenn High School music education teacher, was recognized as an Exceptional Educator through a program created by the Giroux Pappas Trial Attorneys Law Firm. Ms. Bonner was nominated for her commitment to music education. She leads music appreciation, choir, band, symphonic, and orchestra classes and is the marching band director. John Glenn High School received a \$1,000 donation from the law firm.

**Work-Based Learning:** We had 173 students out on Work-Based Learning that required a visit by an instructor and a training agreement. Some of these were paid jobs and some were unpaid internships or clinical, but they were out receiving hands-on training in all. A special "thank you" to Gay Bobowski, CTC Work-Based Learning Coordinator. She has done an incredible job this year.

**Fifth graders explore career paths at Eastern Michigan University:** For two weeks, 800 district fifth graders took over the Eastern Michigan University campus for the Wayne-Westland Excursion camp. Students explored two career paths of their choice and on the final day, campers celebrated their experience by showcasing projects related to their field of study, including dance routines, dramatic scenes, and creative art projects. This camp is part of the district's college and career readiness initiatives.

**Register now for summer programs!** Wayne-Westland Community Schools has partnered with several community organizations to provide a variety of exciting programs to keep your child engaged this summer. Information and registration links can be found in the 2023 Summer Programs Information Guide on the District Website. Program placement is on a first-come, first-serve basis.

The Oxford Fire Department donated a fire truck to William D. Ford Career-Technical Center. We are so thankful to our friends Chief Matthew Majestic and Assistant Chief Randy Vesper. This fire truck will train the next generation of great firefighters.

This week we have Young Sharks and the Community of Champions Breakfast.

The countdown is on! This week is the last week of school for the Class of 2023. Our seniors and their families will celebrate prom, award ceremonies and graduation. We are very proud of our students and wish them the best of luck.

**Graduation Celebration:** Please join us for our district's three graduation ceremonies. On June 2nd at 6:00 pm at the Hype Recreation Center, located at 4635 Howe Rd, Wayne, MI 48184, we will celebrate our students from Wayne-Westland Innovative Academy. Then, the next day we will honor John Glenn High School at 10:00 am and Wayne-Memorial High School at 2:00 pm. Both ceremonies will be held at the Eastern Michigan University George Gervin GameAbove Center, located at 799 N. Hewitt, Ypsilanti, Mi. 48197.

**Save the Date - Back to School and Resource Fair 8.16.23:** Wayne-Westland Community Schools is hosting its Back to School and Resource Fair on Wednesday, August 16, 2023, from 3 to 7 p.m. at the John Glenn High School football field. The fair will feature family resources, including health screenings and book bags with supplies. In addition, attendees can enjoy food, carnival games, train rides, a petting zoo and more. All for FREE. Be sure to mark your calendar and join us for the fun. All students must be accompanied by a parent or legal guardian.

## 265.23 CITIZEN'S COMMENTS: NON-AGENDA ITEMS (GENERAL) - Cox

The following citizens commented that they believe Ms. Swanson should remain the principal at Wildwood Elementary School:

Melinda Harris Alex Itter Hadligh Yoh Jackson Cunningham Jaxson Cunningham Natalie Whaley Kevin Carter Thomas Truchan Abigail Krappitz Julie King Theron Allen Maja Cunningham Ellie Truchan Serenity (Last name unknown) Morgan (Last name unknown)

Dr. Fleda Fleming, from the Equipped Organization shared that their organization will be honoring two students from Johns Glenn High School and Two students from Wayne Memorial High School each with a \$1000 Scholarship.

# 266.23 REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATIONS, BOARD OF EDUCATION - Cox

K. May:

- Thanked all of the presenters, pledge students and citizens.
- Thanked all students, staff and families for all of their hard work in the outstanding school year.

M. Hines:

- Thanked the pledge students and citizens.
- Shared that she had an opportunity to attend:
  - The skilled trades career fair and it was an awesome experience
  - o School improvement dinner
  - William D. Ford's extrication performed by the Fire and EMT program and the home build by Construction Trades program
  - o High school plays
  - The Holocaust Museum

# F. Weaver:

- Thanked Amada Dybus and Daryl Beebe for their presentation.
- M. Neal:
  - Acknowledged that are not as many people as there use to be signing up to serve the community. It is great that we offer the programs to educate the students about civil service opportunities.
- J. Albrecht:
  - Thanked the pledge students and all speakers.
  - He was appreciative that the students and families shared their feelings.
- D. Cox:
  - Thanked the parents of the students for bringing them to address the board.

- Shared that every student and employee has a path.
- Family Resource Center is a great resource, but families cannot use the resources if they do not know how to obtain them.
- The Wayne-Westland Relay for Life will be held June 10, from 11am Midnight located at Tattan Park in Westland.
- Thanked Dr. Dignan for making the decisions that the district needs.

## 267.23 ADJOURNMENT

Resolved, that the board adjourn the meeting at 9:19 p.m. Motion by M. Hines, support by K. May.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES:	6
NAYS:	0
ABSTAIN:	0
ABSENT:	1

MOTION PASSED

Melandie Hines Board of Education Secretary Wayne-Westland Community Schools